
BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM  

 

Quorum noted 
 
6:30 PM:  Meeting called to order by Chairman Fernald. 
 
Roll Call:   All present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance recited 
 
Moment of Silence observed 
 
Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
 
6:32PM There were no minutes approved at tonight’s meeting. 
    
Public Comment: 

 
There was no public comment at tonight’s meeting. 

 
Old Business (Action List): 

 
6:34 PM  

A. Review employment application for re-wording of “Crime” vs. “Felony” 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue explained that, on the employment application, it asks if anyone has 
committed any felony and then it says to not worry about it because it does not necessarily 
affect one’s hiring, but there are many things that are not felonies that are crimes she feels 
are important – as an example, she asked if the Town would want to hire a shoplifter, 
which is not necessarily a felony but, though minor, reflect on someone’s character. 
 
Ms. Place asked how she would word that change on the application. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that she would just change the word “felony” to “crime”. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if that change was the consensus of the Board. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to change the word “felony” to “crime”. 
 

 B. Alarm Systems 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that this subject comes up regularly in the meetings. 

 
C. Town Manager 
 
This will be discussed later in the meeting. 
 
D. Employment Contracts  
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if they had any contracts, did they want contracts and, if so, for 
which positions. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked for clarification. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that most businesses who hire have employee contracts that 
include terms for wages, perks, etc. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that the Town has never had any and do not have any currently. He 
explained that, generally when towns have contracts, the primary one is for the town 
manager – after that it would be department heads, if any. 
 
Mr. Moynahan commented that it would certainly be something to look into if they had 
any changes to those positions. 
 
E. Department Head Meetings 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

F. Job Reviews: 
 a. Schedule 
 b. Where job reviews are kept 
 c. Comp Time – salaried vs. hourly and merit vs. steps 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that they needed to schedule this, as they are out-of-date. 
 
G. Update EMA Plan 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if Mr. Blanchette had talked with Mr. Bowman. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that he had spoken to Mr. Muzeroll about this and, that when he got back, 
he would address this. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue clarified that she mentioned Mr. Bowman because he offered to come 
down and this had been talked about a couple of weeks ago. 
 
Mr. Muzeroll said that it was his responsibility, as EMA Director, to make those decisions 
for when the plan needs to be up-dated. He added that, if they had any questions about 
EMA actions or non-actions, he would appreciate it if they would go through him, first, 
before going through Mr. Bowman. He clarified that he did not have any problem 
answering anyone’s questions but there is a chain-of-command thing. He acknowledged 
that the plan does need to be updated and is partially updated, saying there was an EMA 
Plan in place. He added that not much would change, logistically, except maybe some of 
the names that are in there.  He clarified that Mr. Bowman would probably not be the one 
to deal with the EMA Plan and that it would most likely be Rick Davis, who is in charge 
with the local plan. He added that he had not been able to get in touch with Mr. Davis since 
getting back and, when he did, he would set up a meeting and let the Chair know of 
potential dates. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that she thought it would be a simple matter to do the up-
dates for names and numbers. She said the plan is good. 
 
H. EMA Ordinance 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if Mr. Muzeroll knew if the Town needed an ordinance. 
 
Mr. Muzeroll said that he had been under the assumption that Eliot had an ordinance in 
place. He added that he has not, of yet, been able to find that, however, he does have a 
copy of a Selectmen’s policy and sample EMA ordinance for the Board’s review. He 
clarified that the sample is a nationwide standard EMA ordinance and, tweaked for Eliot, it 
would give the Town an ordinance in place and a document for the Selectmen’s policy that 
identifies the National Incident Management System as being the system that Eliot would 
use for all emergencies. Mr. Muzeroll said that he would give the Board the copies tonight 
for their review and getting it on the agenda for December. 
 
I. Code Red Alert System 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that she had gathered the information and given it to the Board 
members to think about for whether they wanted this or not. She added that it is a 
computerized telephone alert system and similar to the reverse 911 system, except a little 
more sophisticated, as it can pinpoint a particular block of houses. Using a recent house 
fire on Goodwin Road, she said that it could have let people living on that road to take 
another road around that specific point. 
 
Mr. Muzeroll said that there are areas of the country where it has been quite successful. He 
added that, speaking with other fire chiefs around the country, it is only as good as the 
database provided to it – the initial database is whatever the phonebook has and allows 
people to integrate any other information, like E911. He questioned who would utilize the 
system or who would actually be the person to go to this integrated map somewhere on a 
screen and say they would notify all those people. He commented that that has been the 
downfall in smaller departments with dispatch centers in negotiating that – bigger 
communities with full-time E911 centers appear to benefit the most. He added that he 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

wasn’t saying it was a bad system and it certainly has its merits. He also added that he 
didn’t know how expensive it was but knew it wasn’t free and it requires maintenance. 
 
J. Driver’s License checks 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that that has started and is ongoing. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if they were getting the volunteers that drive for the Town, as well. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said yes. 
 
K. Update personnel policy to reflect progressive discipline 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that the Town did not have one – that it is kind of hit-or-miss, as far 
as she knows. She added that there should be some kind of a paper trail that could be 
followed if the board had to discipline any employee. 
 
Mr. Fernald clarified that the only thing they currently have is in the police department. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that there is something in the personnel policy but he hasn’t read it 
recently. He said he would take a look at it and report back to the Board. 
 
L. Mission Statement 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that this has been mentioned a few times. She asked if the Board 
wanted a mission statement that, since they don’t aren’t doing a charter, would give 
guidance to the Board for the next many years. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if MMA didn’t give a guideline for Board responsibilities. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said yes but a mission statement is for the whole Town. She added that 
she didn’t have any of the information with her but would bring it to the next meeting. 
 
M. Solid Waste Alternatives – Solid Waste Committee 
 
There was no update tonight. 
 
N. Wild Brook Lane 
 
There was no update tonight. 
 
O. PACE Program for Town Meeting Vote 
 
Mr. Murphy said that this is something the Board should put on for the December Special 
Town Meeting, which he believes they are aiming for. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that that was something they needed to talk about – that they were going 
to have a Town Meeting in December. 
 
Mr. Murphy commented that there was a slight delay in consideration of this PACE 
ordinance because the Town had a question about the change South Berwick had made 
and, in fact, they did not make much of a change at all in the ordinance. He clarified that 
they did get copies of the contract which, after Eliot adopted the ordinance, the Town has 
to sign the contract, and the wording in that contract is more inclusive than the wording of 
PACE, which not only obligates the Town to use the PACE Program but also another 
existing program. 
 
P. Sewer Contract Committee 
 
Mr. Blanchette said to Mr. Murphy that they had not gotten authorization, yet, to have 
CLD hire an outside {firm} to review the contract and asked if he wanted to discuss that 
tonight. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

Mr. Murphy said that they had been trying to find additional information. He added that 
Kennebec and Old Town (systems that have multi-town contracts) have sent down copies 
of the contracts they have so that Eliot could compare those with the contract they are 
developing with Kittery. He added that that is ongoing. He also added that hiring a 
particular entity experienced in inter-municipal agreements hasn’t been determined yet. 
 

6:47 PM Q. Skateboard Park Noise 
 
Mr. McPherson said that it had been quiet. 
 
R. GPS Problems – Call Verizon weekly 
 
Mr. Fernald clarified that this is something residents need to do – they need to call 
Fairpoint to update their individual address. He explained that GPS goes by addresses in 
the phone book (old address), so it becomes a problem, and the only way it can be up-dated 
is by individual residents calling to make the change. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that she believes that, if someone from this office called once a 
week and asked when the up-date would be done – they have it but just haven’t done it. 
 
Mr. Blanchette clarified that they would not change the address until the resident that owns 
that phone number calls it in. He said that they have changed the addresses as far as the 
background data and the data that E911 has are the correct addresses. He added that it has 
nothing to do with the phonebook. Mr. Blanchette said that, if the address in the 
phonebook is wrong, then it would not be corrected until the owner corrected it by calling. 
He clarified that that was what they were told from the beginning and that is what the 
Town has put into all the notices that have gone out to residents. 
 
Mr. Murphy asked to what address does Fairpoint send their bills…and, since they have 
that database, why don’t they shift that over to the telephone. 
 
S. Representation on Kittery Sewer 
 
There was no update tonight. 
 
T. Review CLD Contract (Design Stage) – Mr. Moulton & Mr. Moynahan 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that they had not met. 
 
Mr. Moulton said that he was putting something together and he would meet with Mr. 
Moynahan to discuss by the beginning of next week. 
 

6:51 PM U. Update on tax assessments previously abated 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue clarified that these were lands that were abated because they couldn’t be 
built on due to court case, the court cases have been resolved and building is proceeding 
apace. She said that she checked with Vision (online database) and they still show the 
lower appraisal amounts. 
 
Mr. Blanchette clarified that it will be until that part is up-dated. He said that Ms. 
Painchaud’s computer is up-dated for these properties. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that they could then take this off the Action Item List. 
 
V. Committee Recognition/Party 
 
Mr. Fernald said that the Town had not done this for a while – that the Town recognized 
committee members with a party. He asked if the Town had money for a party anymore. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he would have to check to see if they had budgeted for that – he 
thought that that may not have been budgeted for. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that they had a line item for awards and ceremonies. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

Mr. Blanchette agreed, but not specifically for parties. 
 
Mr. Moynahan commented that what they budgeted for awards and ceremonies would not 
be enough for a party. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked about some other form of recognition for volunteers – they make 
this Town run. 
 
Mr. Fernald agreed and said that having a get-together was a good way to recognize the 
many volunteers that have made running the Town very successful over the years. He 
added that it is something that has not been done because they didn’t want to budget for 
something like that, however, he suggested they look to see how much they might have to 
have something for Christmas. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he would look and report back at the next meeting. 
_________________________________________________________ 
 
Mr. Muzeroll up-dated the Board by saying that the contract had been signed for the new 
tank truck has been signed by the Chair, himself and the vendor last week and it would be 
delivered in the spring of 2011. He added that he does have possession of the performance 
bond and he will give that to the Treasurer as soon as he sees her. He also said that he 
would keep the Board up-to-date and reminded the Board that, as they get closer to the 
delivery date, he would be looking to dispose of another truck, which he would be 
discussing with Mr. Moulton. 
 

6:55 PM Mr. Muzeroll asked if he could have an executive session tonight with the Board, as he had 
a personnel matter he needed to discuss. 

 
The Board agreed. 

 
New Business (Correspondence List): 
 
#1 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Michael Moynahan 
 REF : Boy Scouts attending BOS Meeting 

 
Mr. Fernald commented that they had some Boy Scouts in attendance and invited Mr. 
Gregor to introduce them. 
 
Mr. Gregor, Scout Master, explained that the boys attending tonight were all first-year 
Webelos (4th grade) and hoping to become Boy Scouts by next March. He said that their 
attendance tonight was part of their requirement to earn the Citizenship Badge, which 
teaches them about their government. He added that they spoke to a public defender, talked 
about their court system, how they select a jury, etc. The boys attending were Ian Bryant, 
Trevor Chase, Drew Gregor, Paul Spezia and Robby Christian. He said that they 
appreciated the Board having them tonight. 
 
The Board thanked them for coming. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that the Marshwood All-Stars (Cal Ripken 10 and under) players had their 
State championship this last July and won for Marshwood. He said that, on behalf of the 
Town of Eliot and Board of Selectmen, he wanted to take a moment to congratulate the 
Marshwood All-Stars for their first win of the Cal Ripken 10-and-under State 
Championship Award and, if anyone would like to see the trophy, it is in the back of the 
room. 
 

7:00 PM   
#2 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Dan Blanchette 
 REF : Action Issues 

 
Mr. Fernald said that they needed to reschedule the next BOS meeting, as it fell on 
Thanksgiving Day. He added that he believed they would be interviewing for the CEO 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

position on November 18th and suggested that any actions that needed to be dealt with, 
could be dealt with at that meeting time. 
 
The Board agreed. 
 
The time was set for 4:30 PM for the November 18 meeting. It was noted that interviews 
would be done in Executive Session. 
 

7:02 PM   
#3 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : William Bowman 
 REF : Road Issues 

 
Mr. Fernald discussed that much of this letter had to do with speed limits that Mr. Bowman 
would like the Board to review and, possibly, resolve. He asked if this was something the 
Town could do. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that the Town, even though it is a State road, could request the speed 
be changed and, if the State deems it reasonable, then they would grant the request. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that, regarding the request for a sign to be replaced near Mr. Bowman’s 
home could be initiated through the Town Highway Department and asked Mr. Moulton to 
look in to that. 
 
Mr. Moulton said that he had already forwarded that on to the Maine DOT and is waiting 
for comment back from them. He added that he would keep the Board posted on this. 
 
Mr. Bowman said that he contacted the State two years ago on that and the private (hidden) 
driveway sign and they said that they could order the sign and that it would take 
approximately six months. He added that he told her about the sign (hidden driveway) 
being down and she told him they would take care of it. Mr. Bowman said that was two 
years ago that he thinks that is unacceptable. He agreed that he went to the Town Highway 
Department and they sent him to the State, which was right, as the Town is responsible for 
the maintenance but the State is responsible for the signage. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that he believed some prodding of the Maine DOT by the Eliot Highway 
Department would help to get this resolved. 
 
Mr. Bowman agreed and said that that was what he was asking for. 
 
Mr. Fernald discussed the speed issues and asked for comments from the Board members. 
 

7:09 PM Mr. Moynahan said that he thought the best route to get the speed issues resolved would be 
through the Chief of Police, as he has had direct involvement with some of the changes in 
Town. 
 
Mr. Bowman said that he did forward a letter to the police department. 
 
Mr. Moynahan suggested the Board follow up on that letter. 
 
Mr. Fernald agreed. 
 

7:12 PM 
#4 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Dan Blanchette 
 REF : Second Reading of Consent Agreement 
 

Mr. Fernald asked if there were any changes the Board wanted to make to the Consent 
Agreement. 
 
No changes were made. 
 
Mr. Moynahan moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, to adopt the Selectmen’s Consent 
Agreement Guidelines, as written. 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

    VOTE 
     4-0 

               Chair concurs 
#5 TO : Board of Selectmen 

FROM : Eliot Comprehensive Plan Review Committee 
REF : Comp Plan 
 
Mr. Lemire, Eliot Comprehensive Plan Review Committee (ECPRC), asked if the Board 
had had time to review the letter. 
The Board agreed they had. 
 
Mr. Lemire discussed that they had been having some interesting discussions over the last 
several months – a lot of it centering around trying to figure out what it was they were 
supposed to be doing. He said that they had Paul Schumacher come down to their last 
meeting to give them some guidance. He added that one of the things in the Plan that 
several committee members had been interested in was regarding the BOS creating a 
committee to review the effectiveness and functionality of Town government every so 
often. Mr. Lemire said that he had been initially reluctant, as Chair, to get into looking into 
something like that by their committee as he felt their workload would be too extreme. He 
added that, having had Mr. Schumacher come down allayed that concern and even Mr. 
Schumacher agreed and recommended the CPRC come to the BOS to propose that 
responsibility be assigned to their committee as part of their process in order to avoid 
having to create another committee. Mr. Lemire clarified that the goal and intent of their 
review would be nothing more than to gather information, assess how things function now 
– effectively or not, then report back to the BOS for them to do with it what they would. 
He added that the voted request of the ECPRC was to request the BOS grant their 
committee that responsibility, as outlined in the particular paragraph of the Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
Mr. Fernald quoted from the particular paragraph: “…It is recommended that the Board of 
Selectmen, on a timely basis and not to exceed every ten years, appoint a committee to 
review the effectiveness of the current form of government and make recommendations to 
them and the citizens of Eliot about possible structural changes.” 
 
Mr. Lemire agreed that that was the paragraph and, after having talked with Mr. 
Schumacher, the committee feels they would have ample time to accomplish this. 
 

7:16 PM Mr. Moynahan agreed and said that he thought it would be great for ECPRC to take this 
and review it to see what the Town’s needs are. 

 
Ms. Place agreed. 
 
Mr. McPherson said that he thought the Town government was working fine as it is. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that, if the BOS grant this request, the ECPRC may find the present form 
of government is not what is wanted. 
Mr. Lemire clarified that they would not go in to this with any preconceived notion of what 
a result would be but just do what the Comprehensive Plan tells them to do and review it to 
not only make sure that the structure is good but that the execution, etc., is all working for 
the best interests of the Town. He added that the information they find would be presented 
to the BOS and citizenry to act on or not. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that he would entertain a motion. 
 
Mr. Moynahan moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, that the Board of Selectmen charged 
the Eliot Comprehensive Plan Review Committee to undertake a review of Town 
government, as outlined in the Eliot Comprehensive Plan. 

    VOTE 
     3 for-1 opposed (Mr. McPherson) 
                Chair concurs with majority 

 
Mr. Murphy asked to speak. 
 
The Board agreed. 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

Mr. Murphy discussed that one of the problems they have had all year long is trying to 
figure out how to attack and get a hold of these 47 pages of policies, strategies and goals in 
such a way that they could understand and get a picture of it. He said that he recently 
finished up with reducing the 47 pages to 10 pages, which summarizes the 14 major 
sections of the Plan. He explained that, in those 14 sections, there are 47 polices and, 
within those policies are 178 strategies or tasks or ways of implementing the goals. He said 
that they want to get this on an excel spreadsheet and the spreadsheet would be used by the 
ECPRC to note reports from all the committees and people having responsibility for 
accomplishing these tasks and, going out ten years, they would have a record of what has 
and hasn’t been done. Mr. Murphy said that he has talked with Judy Hatch, who is 
currently doing some work for the ECSD, and is very experienced with excel software. He 
added that she has looked this over and is excited by the whole project and the ECPRC 
would like permission to hire Ms. Hatch to do this spreadsheet project. He added that this 
could be used for annual Town reports and inform committees as the membership changes. 
He said that Ms. Hatch’s price to do this is $30/hour and she estimates she could get the 
first version of this done in about 5 hours. He requested the Board to authorize this 
expenditure, if monies could be found. 
 

7:23 PM Mr. Fernald commented that he realized it wasn’t very much money but asked where it 
would come from. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he believes the only place they have any leeway would be under 
Consultants, which covers a variety of outside source hiring, and this would certainly fall 
into that category. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that she thought this would be a wonderful thing to have for a 
variety of reasons. She explained that the Comprehensive Plan is supposed to be up-dated 
every ten years and that, with this kind of tool, it would be quite possible to avoid going 
through the whole process, again, and just up-date sections that have not been completed. 
She said that York has done that and she thinks it makes good sense. 
 
Mr. Murphy agreed and discussed that many committees are minimally, or not at all, 
mentioned as sharing responsibility for implementing this Plan and there are areas where 
this could be more accurately or sensibly looked at and modified to take appropriate 
advantage of the expertise on the various committees, commissions and boards. He added 
that they had separated out sections that apply to each group and would go around to each 
group to find out where they were and to offer any aid. He reiterated that the spreadsheet 
would make this much easier to implement for everyone. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he thinks that is a great approach and believes they should find 
that small amount of funds that would benefit the Town moving forward. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue agreed. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked for a motion to expend money to hire Ms. Hatch for a specific number 
of hours at a specific cost. 
 
Ms. Place asked for clarification from Mr. Murphy that he said it would take five hours. 
 
Mr. Murphy said yes, for the initial transfer of his draft chart on to a test version, she 
thought would take about five hours. He added that there would be follow-on quarterly or 
once a year to update the spreadsheet database. 
 
Ms. Place said that the outlay for five hours would be fine and would give them a starting 
place to look at it and to see how much further they want to go. 
 

7:30 PM A member of the audience asked if the Town would own this document or would they 
always have to go back to this individual to get any editing done. He clarified that she 
would be doing the bulk of the work by putting it in there but, once it’s in an excel 
spreadsheet format, then editing isn’t that big of a deal. He clarified that he was asking if 
she would be in ownership of this or would the Town own it so that they could update it 
without incurring additional costs. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

Mr. Murphy said that he knew of no reason why Ms. Hatch would object – it is Town 
information. 
 
The same member suggested that, if a contract is drawn up, then wording should be 
included that the document/product is property of the Town and not held in her possession. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked for a motion. 
 

7:32 PM Ms. O’Donoghue moved, second by Mr. Moynahan, that Judith Hatch be hired for five 
hours at $30 an hour to put the information from the Comprehensive Plan onto a 
spreadsheet so that the Town can monitor the progress of the committees that are involved 
and that the spreadsheet document be owned by the Town. 

    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 

 
#6 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Conservation Commission 

REF : York River Wild and Scenic Partnership with National Park Service 
 
Mr. Crilley, ECC member, discussed the National Park Service (NPS) Wild and Scenic 
Designation Partnership Program. He said that they are trying to get the York River 
designated Wild and Scenic, with the help of the NPS and looking for support from York 
and Eliot, those towns the river resides in.  He explained that the first phase in this is to 
have a study done to see if the river qualifies, which takes approximately three years. Mr. 
Crilley said that they are looking for a letter of support from the Board indicating that they 
are interested in having this study performed, adding that the more organizations support 
this, the better and stronger their case to Congressional delegates. Mr. Crilley said that the 
Friends of York River, looking for letters of support, have come to the CC, and they have 
gotten involved, as it seems like a great program. He added that, in turn, the CC discussed 
this with the Eliot Historical Society (EHS), as there would be federal money available 
during the study phase to get more complete information about all the mills that used to 
operate on the York River from York Pond down past Frost Hill Road. Mr. Crilley said 
that, if this qualifies to go to the second phase of designation, then the land would stay in 
local control and would remain subject to existing town and state statutes, so the federal 
government would not come down and say they could or could not do this or that on the 
river. He emphasized that having it classified as Wild and Scenic did not bring any arm of 
the federal government down to dictate what could be done on the river. He also said that 
federal money comes available from time to time to use for various things along the river. 
Mr. Crilley said that York is spearheading this and has come to Eliot to ask for their 
support, although they don’t need it. He added that it would be nice if the river does get 
designated that it doesn’t stop at the Eliot line. 
 

7:38 PM Ms. Weeks said that, after the study, there would be, if the decision is to go ahead, then the 
Town has to vote to accept the designation. She clarified that this is just asking for support 
of the application for a study. 

 
Mr. McPherson moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, that the Board support the 
Conservation Commission with a letter of support. 

    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 

 
Mr. Crilley said that he had an address for the letter to be sent to and more information of a 
clarifying template for the letter. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that that information should go to Mr. Blanchette and asked if the Board 
would authorize the Chairman to sign the letter. 
 
The Board authorized the Chairman to sign the letter of support. 
 

 
 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

7:40 PM   
#7 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Eliot Building Committee 
 REF : ECSD House and Barn 

Mr. Fernald asked the Fire Chief if using the building as a burn training exercise is a viable 
alternative. 
 
Mr. Muzeroll said that it would be viable but has a feeling the house would not pass 
environmental safety surveys, such as lead paint and asbestos, whether for disposal or 
burning and, if it is documented that there are hazardous materials, then he doesn’t want 
anything to do with it. 
 
Ms. Shapleigh commented that mold is a very big issue in Maine now and, if the Board 
condemned it for mold, she doesn’t see how they could possibly sell it to anyone. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if there was any way they could find out if there is a way to sell it to be 
dismantled if it is declared moldy. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he thinks that, as long as they declare it and provide the report to 
anyone who wants to look at it, then he believes they would be safe, in that sense. He 
added that the report would include any remedies that could be done, so someone could 
remedy the mold before the structure was moved or move it and remove those parts that 
held the mold. He said that they could certainly try to put it out for bids and receive the 
bids, sometime in December, he would think. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that, if there is any lead or asbestos, as they just discussed, then the 
cost to abate those would be too prohibitive, as it would cost more to remove than the 
building is worth.  
 
Mr. Fernald asked what they would do if it could not be burned or sold.  Mr. Moynahan 
said that, like anything in that shape, it is crunched up and disposed of in landfills. 
 
Mr. Blanchette commented that he thinks Mr. Moynahan is right and that he doesn’t think, 
architecturally, that that building has any value for moving or for demolishing, like for an 
old barn that has wood 200 years old, for instance. He added that his suspicion was that 
they would not get anyone who would want to bid on it. 
 
Ms. Shapleigh said that they might need to have licensed people to take care of those 
things – to even do any demolition – and probably opening a Pandora’s Box. 
 
Mr. Fernald commented that the Board needed to make a decision and asked for the 
pleasure of the Board. 
 

7:45 PM Mr. Moynahan said that he thinks this Board has finally decided that that building is not 
salvageable and they need to dispose of that building. He added that they could look at 
having a contractor look at how much it would cost to containerize and budget that amount 
for another year but they need to start finding dollars to dispose of the building. 

 
Ted Place asked, if it was found that it was just lead paint, if all the trim work were 
removed from the inside, could it still be burned. 
 
Mr. Muzeroll said that a building could burn no matter what is in it – it is whether they 
want to burn it and that his reservation was the safety of the firemen. He added that he is 
for practice burns and he was concerned that they might damage the barn. He said that, for 
what it would cost to burn that building down, they could probably containerize it cheaper. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue, discussing the budget and recognizing that nothing could be done until 
the summer, asked if that building was so unsafe that it presented a potential hazard to the 
citizens. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that they could condemn the building, internally, with code 
enforcement and the planning department. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

Mr. Fernald said that one thing that had to be done is to find another area to store items 
that are being stored in that building. He asked if it was the consensus of the Board to 
budget in the next budget cycle for the demolition of that building. 
 
Mr. Moynahan asked if this would be a separate line item in the budget and need voter 
approval, as the people purchased this building or is this something the Board could do on 
their own. 
 

7:50 PM Mr. Blanchette commented that that was a good question and he would like to contact 
MMA legal. He said that, off the top, he thinks they might need Town approval to dispose 
of it because, even though they have the land, the building is considered real property, not 
personal property. 

 
Mr. Fernald asked Mr. Blanchette to look into that. 
 
Mr. Hirst asked if it would be in line to get quotes on how much it would cost to get it 
demolished so they could put that information in the book. 
 
Mr. McPherson said that he thinks the whole process should move forward so that the 
Town knows at Town Meeting what would be going in there, as well as the options for 
removing the building, so that they don’t have to go back to another Town Meeting. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that he thinks this is something the Building Committee should be made 
aware of so that they can be planning something for that space. 
 
Mr. Muzeroll volunteered to get costs for demolishing the building and bring that 
information back to the Board. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to have Mr. Blanchette get the legal information and Mr. 
Muzeroll to get demolition costs. 
 

Department Head/Committee Reports 
 

At this time, Mr. Fernald said that they would go back to Department Heads, as Mr. 
Moulton would like to speak. 
 
Mr. Moulton apologized for being late. He said that he had something come up recently 
concerning the Old Fields Bridge, again. He said that he went out and did an inspection of 
the bridge and found the timbers loose again, the stringers underneath are split and they 
have an issue. He added that he has a temporary fix in mind if they could get the Town of 
South Berwick to join in the repair. He explained the repair he had in mind to keep the 
integrity of the bridge intact and said that he had discussed with South Berwick a reduction 
in the weight limit to 6-8 but they had an issue with that because of school buses, etc., and 
did not want to go below 10.  He explained that during his inspection the other day an 
empty school bus went over the bridge and it deflected, in his best estimate, approximately 
two inches. He said that they needed to do a temporary repair or close the bridge. Mr. 
Moulton said he had a consultant with him at the inspection to give him an idea what it 
would cost to re-engineer it, going through the whole permitting process and getting 
additional grant money to get funding for both towns and they both saw the deflection and 
noted it and he concurred, without putting a stamp on it, with his recommendation for the 
repair. He added that this temporary repair would be just enough to give both towns time to 
appropriate the money to do a full replacement. Mr. Moulton said that the temporary repair 
would cost each town approximately $2,500 and, with the Board’s approval, he would pull 
that money from his Road & Bridges Line and Hot Top & Paving Line, which would cover 
their portion of the fix. He added that, if South Berwick gets on board with this, he would 
like to get the repair done before Thanksgiving. 
 

7:55 PM It was the consensus of the Board to allow Mr. Moulton to expend the money for the repair 
of Old Fields Bridge. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he had a comment about the long-term for this bridge. He 
suggested that the Board should seriously consider closing the bridge. He explained that 
that road is a road that parallels Route 236 and asked the Board to consider what function it 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

now serves. He added that, in the past, it may have served its’ function very well, but that 
may not be the case anymore. 
 
Mr. Moynahan commented that they had discussed this, as well, in the past, and believes 
that they were all in agreement that probably is the right route at some time in time to take. 
Mr. Blanchette said that the temporary repair would give the two towns time to consider 
that option. He added that South Berwick may have other reasons for having that bridge 
that they may want to discuss with this Board. He suggested that the highway departments 
of the two towns get together to discuss this option. 
 
Mr. Fernald agreed that might be a good path to take. 

 
7:57 PM 
#8 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Grant Hirst 
 REF : Alarm System and Insurance Issues 

 
Mr. Hirst said that they had $16,000 appropriated to do alarm system work in all the Town 
buildings, however, since the ECSD buildings are probably not going to need alarms, he 
has not included those. He added that they have total quotes, after review by his consultant, 
of $14,770.15 to do all the alarm systems in all the buildings with the exception that no 
intrusion system was quoted for the police station and that was his fault. He said that he 
wanted to go ahead and get that quote and he has talked with Mr. Short and Mr. Short 
believes there should be an intrusion system in that building. Mr. Hirst said that he would 
like the Board to authorize going forward with the alarm system installation using All 
Points System’s quote. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked for clarification of what Town buildings were included. 
 
Mr. Hirst said that included the Town Hall, fire station, police station, the two transfer 
station buildings and the building that houses the bailed cardboard, cans and bottles. He 
explained that what is proposed is an alarm system and intrusion system for the recycling 
building and crusher building and a fire alarm system, only, for the other building – fire 
and intrusion for the Town Hall, an upgrade to the fire detection system in the fire station 
and an upgrade to the one in the police station. He clarified that these have been run by 
Chief Short, Mr. Moulton and Mr. Muzeroll. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked for the pleasure of the Board. 
 
Mr. Moynahan moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, to hire All Point Systems at the cost 
of $14,770.15 to proceed with the alarm work that Mr. Hirst has indicated. 

    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 

 
8:00 PM Mr. Hirst discussed insurance regarding the Boat Basin. He said that he was concerned 

about the Boat Basin structures – they have a pavilion, a rest room building, two small 
shelters for picnic tables and the floating docks. He said that these are apparently owned by 
the State, that he has a copy of the 1972 contract that Eliot has with the State, and the 
Town understands that they self-insure, which means they don’t have insurance and, if one 
of these buildings goes down, the State might say they won’t have any money in that 
account until, say, four years from now. Mr. Hirst said that they would then be without a 
building and that sort of thing creates an insurable interest on the part of the Town and 
would allow the Town to insure those buildings under the Town policy, even though the 
Town doesn’t own them. He added that it is worthy of note that the Town derives some 
revenue from the rental of the pavilion and that the docking fee depends on the presence of 
the dock. He said that he needs the Board’s guidance on what to do about these buildings 
and structures at the Boat Basin. 

 
Mr. Fernald asked Mr. Blanchette if the Town has a contract with the State on the Boat 
Basin. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that they did. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

Mr. Fernald asked if it indicated that the Town was required to maintain the buildings, etc. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that the Town did not have to maintain the buildings – the State would 
at their discretion. He added that Mr. Hirst was right, that it was not only if funds were 
available but what other parks and the like were competing for those available funds. 
Mr. McPherson commented that the Town puts the floats in and takes them out and, if his 
memory served him, it seemed to him that the floats, at one time, were in poor condition 
and the State replaced them. 
 
Mr. Blanchette agreed that they did, that they had been replaced at least once since he had 
started working for the Town so the State does, from time to time, do these things but, if 
something were to happen to one of the buildings or to the pavilion roof, for example, 
would they come down – he could not guarantee that. 
 
Ms. Place clarified that they had done some work down there some years ago for the 
Town. 
 
Mr. Place said yes that they had built the restrooms and the Town paid for that work. 
 
Mr. Blanchette clarified that the Town had grant money from the State, that the money 
came through the Town but it was the State that paid for the bathrooms. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that he thinks this would be fine but he just feels as though the Town was 
just making insurance companies rich. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue agreed and asked how much this would add to the Town’s policy. 
 
Mr. Hirst said that he thought it would be under $1,000 a year. 
 
Mr. Blanchette commented that the other thing they needed to look at was that, once the 
Board has looked at this particular thing, they need to look at all the things they have 
insured to see if there are some things that are of such low value that they probably should 
not be insured at all. He said that they have talked about that and he knows that there are 
some things that are presently insured that are of such low value that they should probably 
self-insure. 
 
Mr. Hirst suggested, perhaps, the dugouts up at Murray Rowe Field as an example – saying 
that they didn’t have insurance on them now and he has been hesitant to add them. He 
added that his charge was to identify anything he could figure out that might cost the Town 
or hurt it and it was the Board’s job to decide whether they wanted to insure them or not. 
 

8:09 PM A member of the audience asked if it would be worth it to find out what it would cost to 
repair any structures against what it would cost to insure them. 

 
Regarding State-owned structures, Mr. Moynahan suggested putting pressure on the State 
to insure structures they own, asking why it should be only up to the Town. 
 
Mr. Hirst said that the problem is that people who self-insure don’t always self-fund. He 
added that they may say they are self-insured but, if they don’t have any funds to back it 
up, then that makes it rather moot. He added that, if the State doesn’t have the money to 
send to replace the bathrooms, for example, then the Town has no bathroom. 
 
Mr. Moynahan asked if there had been any phone calls or discussions with the State or 
pressure put on the State to take care of these issues and why does the Town say: “Well, I 
guess we’ll just take it.”…what is wrong with a phone call – one has to start somewhere – 
where? – start with this Board and direct someone to make a phone call to see if they could 
fix it, instead of just throwing money at something. He added that he was all for insuring 
but they are already not repairing and he thinks it is time to bark and, if Ms. Ross has some 
problems with that, then the Board could follow up on that and have some backbone and 
he didn’t see what was so hard about that – let’s have some local control. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if it was the consensus of the Board to look into what the State could 
provide as far as insurance goes, if any. He added that the question, itself, wouldn’t cost 
them anything. 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

 
The Board was in agreement with Mr. Fernald. 
 
Mr. Fernald directed Mr. Blanchette to look at the contract and contact the State. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he would get together with Ms. Ross and see who she deals with. 
 
Mr. Fernald agreed and asked him to find out what the Town’s responsibilities were and 
insurance, etc. 
 
Mr. Blanchette agreed. 
 
Mr. Hirst said, to clarify, that he did not favor insuring everything and, certainly, if a 
building is worth a $1,000 and the deductible was $1,000, then he would not be in favor of 
insuring that building. He added that it becomes more important if they have a lot of debris 
that has to be removed and that is part of the value of buying insurance. He clarified that 
the things one insures for are the things that could kill one – things that would hurt the 
Town real bad, such as liability, such as statutory things like workmen’s comp and 
vehicles. He added that for small buildings and structures, while they should be on the 
Town’s list of inventory of buildings and structures, they may not necessarily need to be 
insured. 
 

8:13 PM 
#9 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Northeast Resource Recovery Association 
 REF : Community Waste Stream 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue clarified that they were already a member of this organization and asked 
if Mr. Moulton had been informed of this letter. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that Mr. Moulton had been given a copy of this letter and added that 
they were a member of the organization. 
 

8:14 PM   
#10 TO  : Board of Selectmen 

 FROM : Federal Emergency Management Agency 
REF  : Risk Map Program 
 
Mr. Blanchette commented that the Board might remember that, some time back, York 
County and Cumberland County raised a fuss about the proposed floodplain maps that 
FEMA was proposing. He clarified that this letter is a part of the process of withdrawing 
those maps from becoming the floodplain maps. He added that the Town would be 
receiving updates as to where they are in that process and this is one of the letters they 
would be getting. Mr. Blanchette said that, currently, they are in the 90-day period for 
appeal and comment and, at the end of that period, they would withdraw the submitted 
maps as the floodplain maps and would then use FIRM (Flood Insurance Rate Maps) 
Maps. 
 
Mr. Hirst commented that the Town needed to be very careful with the FIRM maps 
because they can have dramatic implications to people in Shoreland Zoning and that that 
could mean changing designations, which could mean someone could no longer build an 
addition or a structure, etc., and it might put certain things done already in peril. He 
emphasized that, before they get past the maps designation, they need to be cognizant of 
what the implications may be to property owners along the river. 
 

8:16 PM  
Selectmen’s Report: 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue discussed that there was a group of people very upset about the proposed 
Firearm’s Ordinance change and several of them approached her to ask if she could help 
them find a place where they could meet and talk about it and find out some more 
information. She said that she talked with Mr. Short and he graciously let them meet at the 
police station and she put out notices on Eliot Online and the Google list and that was all 
she did. She added that she felt that, if they wanted to meet, then they would meet. Ms. 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

O’Donoghue said that there was a meeting of about 15 people, most of whom she had 
never seen before, that was very civil and positive, with Mr. Short explaining a lot about 
what firearms were, which was very helpful, and some of those there were original writers 
of the ordinance change and, at the end of it, there was some discussion whether to leave 
the original ordinance as it was. She added that everyone agreed that the definition change 
needed to be done. Ms. O’Donoghue said that five people from that meeting agreed to get 
together to rewrite the ordinance and present that to the Board of Selectmen, adding the 
people were Skip Warren, Skip Clark, Larry Bouchard, Stephen Brandon and Joel 
Glassman.   
 
Mr. McPherson asked who the original committee was that worked on that ordinance. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that it was Herbert Skipline???, Larry Shirk, Grant Hirst, Edward 
W_____?, Jeff P_____?, Elb__ Libby, Ted Short and David Oeser. 
 
Mr. McPherson suggested turning it back to that committee. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue suggested that the Board let this little group know about the original 
committee, explaining that Joel Glassman seemed to be the main mover in that little group, 
and, if and when this group meets again, to get in touch with the original committee for 
their input. 
 

8:20 PM Mr. Fernald said that he was glad that people are meeting to get educated, however, the 
ordinance is a Town ordinance and he would like to see a Town committee created, 
especially with people who were on the original committee, and including those people 
that came together after the meeting at the police station. He added that, as a Town 
committee, it would be advertised as to time and place so that any resident in Eliot could 
give their input. 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that they have had citizen groups come up with ordinances 
on their own that has come to the Board and, eventually, have come to the Town and have 
passed. She asked if they were suggesting a change in policy that they would not do that 
anymore and discourage citizens. 
 
Mr. Fernald said not at all and clarified that what he was suggesting was that all the 
Town’s people be involved. He asked if there were to be a small committee, as suggested, 
would they advertise when they were meeting and, if they advertise, would they allow 
other people to come in and give their input on the particular ordinance and, if they were 
going to advertise, then how would they do that. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that the Board could remind them that that was the rule for this sort 
of thing, that they needed to be open meetings. 
 
Mr. Moynahan clarified that this was as simple as five people proposing some potential 
changes that the Board would then look at. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue agreed. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that, then, that would be no different than a gentleman coming in 
presenting a change or question marks. He asked if the original firearms committee would 
still be willing to meet and help. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that he would think so. 
 
Mr. Moynahan asked if they didn’t need someone to come back to this Board and say that 
there are questions with this ordinance – the ordinance change failed. He suggested leaving 
it alone until someone comes in with concerns about it. He added that he was a bit 
confused – they had a group, the group did their job and the voters said no – so, move on. 
He said that the Board should let these five people present something, first, then the Board 
could review that but, right now, it seemed this Board was doing their job for them. 
 

8:25 PM It was the consensus of the Board to leave this alone until citizens come forward to this 
Board wanting to make changes to it and then the Board could reactivate the committee or 
set up a committee to review it, etc. 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
November 11, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

 
Ms. Place commented that the Veteran’s Day Celebration at the Middle School was 
fabulous and very well done, adding that the principle had nothing but praise for those 
young people. 
 
Mr. Fernald pointed out that, if anyone knows of any veterans that are not going to that, 
then they should be invited, as it is something they would certainly remember. 
 
Mr. Murphy commented that he had attended several years ago and had to stand for a long 
time and that made it difficult. 
 
Mr. Blanchette informed the Board that the Town Hall had a serious computer malfunction 
on Wednesday, with the computer down until approximately 2 PM. He said that they do 
have a back up and ran some diagnostic tests today and he was waiting for the results. 
 

8:27 PM  
Executive Session 
 
8:30 PM Moved by Moynahan, seconded by McPherson, that we enter into executive session as 

allowed by 1MRSA 405 section 405(6)(A)Discussion or consideration of … duties … of 
an individual or group of public officials … .      
   VOTE 

     4-0 
                Chair concurs 
 
8:57 PM  Out of executive session. 

 
Other Business as Needed 
 

There was no other business tonight. 
Adjourn 
 
 There was a motion and second to adjourn the meeting at 8:58 PM.  
    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
DATE     Roberta Place, Secretary 

 
 

 


